
 

 
ARC 

ARTS FOR RECOVERY IN THE COMMUNITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Report 2013/14 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 3  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Dedicated to the memory of 
 

Nola Smith 
6/11/1954 � 20/8/2014 

 
 
 



 

 4  

 



 

 5  

Contents 
 
 
 
The Arc Team 
 
Chairperson�s Report 
 
Chief Executive�s Report 
 
Artistic Director�s Report 
 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Picture credits 
Front Cover: 'Stockport' design, Arclight 
Page 11: St Marys and the Market Hall, Lynne Foy 
Page 12: Pearl post natal depressions group, Abacus Childrens Centre 
Page 13: Dawn Pickin, Archives 
Page 16: Arc Community Gallery posters 
Page 19: Mosaic TT, YPA project  
Page 21: Stockport Creative Festival branding, ArcMedia 
Page 22: The Art Bazaar 2013 
Page 23: Tameside Stroke Association, Community Outreach project 
Page 26: Katja Anneli, from 'Wish You Were Here' exhibition 
Page 28: Mosaic COSMP, YPA project  
Page 30: Andy Clayton, Arts for Living 
Page 34: Arc branding, ArcMedia 
Page 35: Pathways design project  
Page 36: Arts for Living session 
Page 37: HART 
Page 38: Jigsaw/Pendlebury PRU, YPA project  
Page 40: BAF 14 design, ArcMedia 
Page 41: BAF 14 lantern parade 
Page 42: Arc Community Gallery 
Page 43: Kar Rowson,from 'Wish You Were Here' exhibition 
Page 46: Mosaic COSMP, YPA project  
Page 48: Arc's Got Talent, Mosaic COSMP, YPA project  



 

 6  

 



 

 7  

The Arc Team 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Julia McBryde     Chairperson 
Hannah Ayres   Director 
Linda Beckwith  Finance Director/Company Secretary 
Kevin Brosnahan   Director   
Sarah Coleman-Bushby             Director 
Nichola Lawless Director 
Steven Pepperell   Director  
  
  
STAFF  
Michael Anderson   Chief Executive Officer 
Nola Smith    Administrator 
Jacqui Wood    Artistic Director 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
Paul Cowham   Accountancy 
Con Brio Consulting   Fundraising and Development 
Wendy Jones   Social Work Practice Tutor 
 
 
ASSOCIATE ARTISTS & VOLUNTEERS  
Penny Alexander                           Elizabeth Ardolino    
Ruth Barnsley                                Lucy Bates  
Naomi Batley                                 Kate Beever     
Katja Bennett                      Danny Bentley     
David Brind                                   Charlotte Brown    
Kvetka Chadwick         Dagmar Chemo       
Dave Clements          Stacey Coughlin              
Nikola Denton                                Sue Diskin     
Anita Draper          Lucie Fitzpatrick        
Sylvia Glover          Joanne Hall     
John Hamilton                               Rita Holland     
Len Holtom                                    Linda Grierson Irish     
Ewa Konior                                   Carol Light                                     
Steph MacKenzie        Tracy McGuinness Kelly 
Claire Mooney     Noomi Muldoon         
Annette Naor    Diane Pagan                                  
Yumi Parker    Lisa Peasey                                   
Adela Pollard    Caleb Scott                                    
Rachel Shore    Andrew Smith                      
Romina Thomson-Muir   Emily Weygang    
Suzie White     
       
                     
SOCIAL WORK STUDENTS    
Oliade Adebesin  Hannah Ayres 
Yanise Besumbu   Sarah Coleman-Bushby 
Lara Ferguson                    Laura Hallas 
Joanna Macintyre     Claire Maxey                                  
Danielle Morrison    Joycellin Munroe-Mignott             
Betty Niyonsaba    Darren Preston                              
Gemma Strothers    Christopher Taylor                         
 



 

 8  

 



 

 9  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1: Arc�s new model 
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Chairperson�s Report 
 
It gives me the greatest pleasure to present Arc�s annual report for 2013/14.  

As we approach our twentieth year in the arts we are indeed celebrating our evolutionary 

journey. A journey that has been the key to putting our long-term dreams into reality. And the 

reality being to make the arts available to all. 

Preparing a proposal highlighting intention of developmental areas and key needs has been the 

initial driving point. Clearly limitations have forced an innovative and creative thought process 

resulting in a new foundation model of service delivery throughout Stockport while encouraging 

partnership working. The difference being that this model will allow the arts to be accessed over 

two sites. 

The creation of our Challenge Model for our participants based in our Reddish Studio coupled 

with our outreach programme within the community will enable us to keep our more vulnerable 

participants at the heart of what we offer. 

The Challenge Centre will sit alongside a new development in the town centre which will provide 

easy access for all to enjoy. Arc�s new model will offer a stepped approach for building 

confidence through the arts. 

 

This last year has seen a second annual week long, activity packed, Brinnington Festival 

attended by all age groups. Young People�s Arc continued to flourish. Our monthly open days at 

our Reddish Studio remained popular for friends and family together times, twinned with 

exhibition launches by various artists, all with interesting and important stories to tell. Studio and 
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outreach programmes continued to develop with our associate artists, social work students, and 

partners. A focus on volunteering and self led group were encouraged and supported.  

An amazing highlight was a complementary coming together of three of our participants that 

enabled a professional photographic exhibition called �Wish You Were Here� at Stockport Art 

Gallery. It was encouraging to have a packed opening night valued by all, and most of all, for 

our participants to be able to share in that overall experience. 

 

This year Arc has continued to benefit from the stable influence and competent experience of 

our Directors. At our last AGM we saw the retirement of Financial Director Rachel Garner and 

throughout the year we have welcomed Linda Beckwith into this officer role. We have also had 

the good fortune to receive two new Directors onto our board, namely Hannah Ayres and Sarah 

Coleman-Bushby. Alongside the Directors and staff, a further circle of skill has been building 

through external consultancy support in key areas of professional expertise. On a personal note 

I would like to thank all our Directors and professionals for their ongoing loyalty and valuable 

contribution to Arc at board level. 

Thanks of appreciation on behalf of our Board of Directors and I go to our Chief Executive 

Michael Anderson,  Artistic Director Jacqui Wood and Administrator Nola Smith for their reliable 

sense of responsibility, creativeness and integrity shown within their roles. 

It is with great sadness that I have to inform you of the recent passing of our dear colleague 

Nola, who worked alongside us for the past twelve years before she became ill. Nola was 
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always conscientious and highly regarded by her friends and colleagues here at Arc. Nola�s 

warm and welcoming personality will be greatly missed and her memory will be cherished for 

many years to come. 

 

As an organisation acknowledgement and thanks go deservedly to our valued participants, 

volunteers, social work students, associate artists and our many supporters of Arc for their 

important input of ideas, continued commitment and interests in our service development. 

Respectfully, for believing in us, our thanks and appreciation on behalf of Arc go to our funders 

for their vital financial investment which is essential in underpinning our service provision. Also a 

vote of thanks sincerely goes to our current partners who join us in various ways of partnership 

working to benefit our local community. 

As I present our annual report to you it is clear that we are in the middle of tough times. As Arc 

sails in unclear waters of changing tides regarding new funding streams, I can only remain 

quietly confident that we will keep an even keel on a chartered course, as our creative spirit 

continues to shine and we value being the best we can be. 

 
 

 
Julia G. McBryde 
Chairperson  
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Chief Executive�s Report 

 

 

 

As I write this report Arc faces the prospect of expanding into a new town centre venue at 

Castle Yard, which has been in the planning for 18 months. 

Meanwhile intensive discussions are taking place within the third sector about future ways of 

working in order to address diminishing resources and the implosion of the statutory sector, 

even as quality of life for many living in our communities sharply declines, and for the same 

reasons. We are told that we are standing on a burning platform. 

 

In some respects, the best parallel I can think of would be a Buster Keaton movie. Not the 

knockabout farce, though that is strangely apposite. More use of timing and position in his visual 

gags. Trains bearing down at full tilt miraculously switch tracks, just in time to avoid each other; 

buildings collapse; yet Buster, with that impassive face, carries on regardless. 

 

Buster makes us laugh; and yet his stony face always seems to me to be on the brink of tears. 

 

Greek tragedy. Hollywood farce. Alas, disaster is bearing down with no sad clown to intervene. 

So we�ll just have to find an answer for ourselves or go the way of silent movies. 

 

The nation currently faces a perfect storm of skyrocketing need coupled with severely 

diminishing resources. In just a few years even core services will have been so severely hit that 

they will be unable to meet statutory obligations.  

 

At the same time, as a culture we seem to have become increasingly risk averse.  

 

We spend as much time recording outcomes as delivering them. Repeatedly, we are asked to prove 

what we already know. Like teachers and other professionals we are drowning in evidence. 

 

Yet I look forward with optimism, the Buster Keaton of Arc, impassively switching tracks, even if 

sometimes only at the last split second, because I have belief. Arc has the capacity to fulfil a 

vital role in first shoring up these burning ruins, then building anew. With fewer resources, the 

sector must adapt as Arc has perforce already learned to. Travel light. Be resilient. Adapt. 

A survey carried out by Mind and the College of Social Work found that more than three quarters 
of mental health social workers and more than 90% of Chief Executives of local Minds who 

responded to the survey said that the mental health of people living in the communities where 
they work had got worse over the past twelve months. 

Jenny Morris � Independent Living Strategy, A review of progress, July 2014  
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Mordwand 

 

 

 

 

 
So how might we evolve a new approach, more streamlined and adaptable, in conditions much 

harsher than we have faced in living memory? How can we scale this mountain? 

 

I have an answer I think, for which the comparison with mountain climbing is an apposite one.  

 

The fearsome North Face of the Eiger is the greatest challenge in Alpine climbing. It has 

claimed the lives of sixty-four climbers, earning it the German nickname Mordwand, literally 

"murder wall". The first successful climb in 1938 took those who achieved it three agonising 

days.  

Ueli Steck is a Swiss speed climber. In 2008 he solo climbed the North Face without ropes or 

artificial aids. On a near vertical cliff wall in the middle of winter in 2008 it took him just 2 hours 

and 47 minutes to complete the ascent, almost exactly seventy years after the first successful 

climb. He trained for a year to reach the necessary level of fitness. He did not so much climb as 

run. And so must we. 

One of the reasons the Mordwand is so dangerous is the likelihood of harsh weather conditions 

setting in without warning. So while Ueli�s approach might seem risky, in fact his sheer speed 

and agility served to offset far greater hazards. Ueli had no backpack or supplies. He had no 

safety line. His lightweight clothing did not even have pockets. The weather did not have time to 

catch him. He was unburdened. 

Arc faces our own fearsome Mordwand, as indeed does the nation. Ueli�s approach to climbing 

serves to illustrate how we should best prepare for it. Not laboriously, but by adopting a speed 

climbers approach. For the greater risk to all of us is the apparent avoidance of risk. This does 

not mean we should be reckless. It simply means we must adapt to a changing world. 

 

To be fit for purpose in a future where resources will inevitably diminish, we will have to make 

improvised � and often risky � decisions, and we will have to make them quickly. We will have 

to find ever more ingenious methods to deliver services. We will have to become more efficient 

and cost effective. 

If we do not, snowstorms will catch us out. Rocks will fall on our heads.  

Future generations will look back at us centuries from now and say, �They lived in the age of 
the failure of nerve.� 
Joseph Campbell 
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The Arc Team 

 

 

 

 

Arc is led by a highly dedicated team; one that I believe is eminently fit for purpose in these 

difficult times. Many of us have been part of its story since our small beginnings in 1995.  

 

Founding director and Arc Chairperson Julia McBryde was previously Chairperson of Stockport 

Mind when we were but a project and later a division within it. If Julia had not taken on the role 

of our Chairperson, it is likely that Arc would never have become an independent charitable 

company. Much of the impact we have made in the past decade would have been lost. 

 

Julia has a truly astonishing level of dedication and commitment to Arc. Despite the many 

difficulties faced, she has never faltered, and the board she has nurtured has kept Arc steady 

It�s simple. You climb as fast as possible. 
Ueli Steck 
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through every challenge. She has also been my personal anchor, and it is genuinely difficult to 

imagine how I would have coped without her insight and support. 

 

Linda Beckwith joined Stockport Mind�s board as Treasurer before I was ever appointed, and 

being as passionate about Arc as Julia, in due course she also joined Arc�s board. As Arc�s 

Finance Director and Company Secretary, she works closely with Arc�s administration team to 

ensure that our flexible approach to delivery is underpinned by a streamlined and efficient 

bookkeeping system. 

 

Together, she and Julia are very much hands on, and the close connection thus established 

between Governance and Management is a further stabilising factor. 

 

Arc is fortunate to have a high level of continuity at board level. Kevin Brosnahan and Steve 

Pepperell further exemplify this. Both men are proud of the fact that they have been participants 

in Arc�s service before joining the board. Their insight into the journey faced by vulnerable adults 

in today�s changing landscape reminds us that Arc�s vision for a healthy, confident, creative 

society must be values driven. For once we lose sight of who we exist to benefit, our collective 

heart and soul where now full would then be emptied. 

 

One of Julia�s most creative insights was to recognise that among our social work student 

placements there were individuals made of the same �right stuff� as the rest of the board. 

Nichola Lawless, Hannah Ayres and Sarah Coleman-Bushby have all recently joined the board 

and made a significant impact, each in their own unique way, and are I know keen to develop 

their roles, to which we all look forward as Arc steps up to embrace a challenging future.  

 

In recent times I have served as a director on the boards of Anchorpoint and Synergy, and in 

the process discovered just how much pressure goes with what can often feel like a thankless 

role. 

 

So to Hannah, Nichola, Sarah, Steven, Kevin, Linda and Julia, I would like to offer my heartfelt 

thanks for all your hard work and dedication. You inspire the rest of us to a level of commitment 

that makes Arc more than just an agency. Arc is the beacon we all fight to keep alight, and we 

burn with its passion. 

 

A manager needs a strong board to back them, and an effective team to deliver with them. 

There have been many iterations of Arc�s staff team over the years. Because of the 

uncertainties that we have always had with respect to funding, we have found that the most 

effective approach is to keep the core staff team very small, while developing around us a 
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powerful group of skilled and experienced freelance associate artists, volunteers and 

participants, so many of who are now very actively engaged in running Arc with us.   

 

Coupled with this, the staff team and the board of directors work very closely together, and this 

may be the most essential ingredient in our efficacy. 

 

Arc�s staff team consists of me, Artistic Director Jacqui Wood and, until very recently, 

Administrator Nola Smith. 

 

Jacqui first came to Arc (MAPS as it then was) in 1996 as an associate artist to deliver creative 

writing and drama sessions. She made an immediate impact, transforming the quality of our 

programme, inspiring participants, delivering scintillating projects. She joined the staff team in 

1997 at the time of our move from the town centre to our current studios in Reddish.  

 

Under Jacqui�s guidance a theatre company developed. Later, she led a group of creative 

writers to author City of Dreams, a powerful radio play performed as the Play for Today on 

Radio Four to a national audience. 

 

Jacqui has been curator of several versions of the Arc Community Gallery, and in the process 

inspired countless aspirants to achieve their career goals.  

 

Perhaps Jacqui�s greatest triumph has been the establishment of Young People�s Arc. This has 

added an important new dimension to Arc�s offer in recent years. It is hard to imagine how Arc 

could have got this far without her. I am Jacqui�s biggest fan. 

 
It is with a heavy heart that I must report the recent death of Nola Smith. Nola was Arc�s 

Administrator for twelve years. She was far, far more than a bookkeeper to us. Just as Nola 

inspired a generation of young woman as a leader in the Girl Guides, her tremendous 

generosity of spirit inspired all of us. She was our rock. 

 

If anyone through an act of sheer will could frighten off �the big C� it would have been Nola. 

Indeed she had already done so once, a decade ago. I know she gave her all to that battle. 

Before she relinquished the fight, she was determined to hold her newborn grandchild in her 

arms. The baby was born on Friday 8th August and I�m thankful to say, Nola was able to hold 

the babe in her arms within hours of birth. Nola died in the early hours of Wednesday 20th 

August, surrounded by family. This report is lovingly dedicated to her memory. Her example, her 

inspiration will never leave us � her vast courage, her enormous heart � 

 

________ 
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Since Tom Northey came on board as Arc�s freelance fundraiser, the quality and range of our 

bids has markedly increased. Tom�s speed and clarity of thought lend wings to this vital but 

extremely challenging aspect of our work, giving us the self-belief to explore new approaches. 

Having previously served as Arc�s main fundraiser myself for many years, I appreciate how 

complex and demanding this task always is. Tom is very resilient. His bids are always 

thoroughly researched and brilliantly well thought out.  

 

Tom has now set up his own business, Con Brio Consulting, and I wish him well in this brave 

new venture. I am confident Con Brio will flourish under his steady hand. While continuing to 

operate under Con Brio�s banner as Arc�s fundraiser, he is also taking on considerably more as 

our development consultant in forging Arc�s new model � more on which later!  

 

Wendy Jones is Arc�s freelance Social Work Practice Educator and has had a huge impact in 

this role. Every year Arc welcomes perhaps a dozen social work students through our doors on 

placement from Salford University. While the students perform a vital function managing case 

loads and referrals, they are also learning as they go. Wendy�s role is to provide this guidance. 

Her lifetime experience as a practicing social worker gives Arc the necessary credibility to 

accept these placements in the first place. The significance of this is that the learning process is 

authentic and suitably rigorous.  Wendy regards the students as her customers, and provides 
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them with a thoroughgoing examination of practice as a result of which those who recognise 

what a gift she offers grow tremendously on placement with Arc. 

 

Like Tom Northey, our accountant Paul Cowham has made the transition to establishing his 

own business, Paul Cowham Associates. As Arc�s accountant, he provides a dedicated service, 

taking a keen interest in the agency�s development from one year to the next. When he left 

Slade and Cooper we preferred to stay with him, which speaks volumes for the level of 

confidence Arc has in his dedicated professionalism. 

 

Perhaps the truest reflection of what we stand for is the way Arc creates roles for people within 

it. The foundation of this is our wonderful team of associate artists. In a sense, this team is 

�immortal�, for though the roster gradually changes as artists come and go through the years, 

the range and quality of this group continues to deepen. �Artist� is perhaps a misnomer, since 

our associates include musicians, designers, potters, writers and professionals in other creative 

disciplines. The beauty of a versatile project-based approach is that virtually any form of 

creative expression can be offered at short notice � and at the very highest level of quality. In 

recent years, some associates have become project managers, taking more responsibility for 

planning activities, festivals and commissions. This has proven to be very effective in enlarging 

our capacity. It also means that Arc is as resilient and responsive to change as any speed 

climber. 

 

I would like to thank all of the associate artists who have worked with us over the years, and to 

those who have moved on to new challenges, may the road rise up to greet you! 

 

Most recently Steph MacKenzie and Charlotte Brown have left us. Steph did brilliant work for 

Arc in managing the first two Brinnington Arts Festivals. This has set in place a legacy others 

can follow. 

 

Charlotte Brown worked across a range of settings, including Stepping Hill Hospital, Styal 

Prison, children�s centres and the Arc studios. Her work was striking for its quality and 

originality.  

 

But nobody ever really leaves us, and one day I fully expect both of them to return to us in one 

guise or another!  

 

Claire Mooney is a good example of this continuity, having delivered music projects for us since 

the early days. Claire�s warm and engaging manner makes music easy and approachable for 

everyone she works with. 
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Our Arcmedia team, Annette Naor and Diane Pagan are just as able to deliver a mural as a 

brochure, developing the Arcmedia design services as a training vehicle for participants, running 

art and design projects across the full range of settings in which Arc works, and projects and 

commissions as project managers. 

 

 

 

Sylvia Glover is our Associate potter. The warmth and quality of her own work is matched by her 

approach to teaching, which has been inspirational. Sylvia�s wonderful pottery provides 

participants with a vital benchmark for excellence, which she clearly inspires them to achieve. 

 

Associate Stacey Coughlin has become our specialist in work with older people. In addition to 

running Arts for Living, she has developed her own projects independently of Arc, which we 

have been delighted to support. Clearly, with an aging population, there is much scope to 

develop this area of work and we are fortunate to have Stacey with us. 

 

Jo Hall has had perhaps the most interesting journey of all our associates. She began as a 

volunteer with Arc before becoming an associate. She then spread her wings, becoming a key 

presence in the development of community arts in Offerton. This was happening even as Arc 

was developing a similar presence in Brinnington. So it felt right to position Jo alongside Steph 

MacKenzie to work with her on the second Brinnington Arts Festival. Now that Steph has moved 

away, Jo is her natural successor as Outreach Co-ordinator.   

 

If anyone�s journey could rival Jo�s, it would be Emily Weygang�s. Emily came to Arc as a social 

work student, though in her case �student� is something of a misnomer. Doctor Emily Weygang 

is a PhD, with many years experience of working in statutory services. So Emily has found Arc a 

profoundly liberating environment, which allows her to express herself in ways the statutory 

sector never could. Accordingly, when Arc received funding from the Esmee Fairbairn 

Foundation to support participants dealing with the exigencies of the Work Programme, Emily 

was a perfect fit for the role of Challenge Co-ordinator. 
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I would also like to thank other valued associates who have worked with us in recent times, 

among them John Hamilton, Kate Beever, Lisa Peasey, Lucy Fitzpatrick, Lucy Bates, Rachel 

Shore, Mad Theatre Company, NK Theatre Company, Solomon Onaolapo (founder of Rising 

Stars), Dave Clements, Rod Kippen, Julie Mosley, Tracy McGuinness Kelly, Claire Maxey, and 

Sue Diskin.  

 

Along with all her other responsibilities, Jacqui has taken huge strides on Arc�s behalf to 

develop a strong team of volunteers in the office, studio and gallery. The range of tasks 

volunteers cover extends from supporting and sometimes running studio activities, to updating 

the web site, publicity, and office cover. 

 

Coupled with this, Arc has always adopted an aspirational approach to its participants. As 

already mentioned, two of Arc�s directors are past participants, as are many of our volunteers, 

while others aspire to be associates. 

 

Even as we have sharpened our gaze on those participants making the difficult transition to full 

recovery, we have acknowledged that other clients need intensive support in order successfully 

to join Arc. In her report, Jacqui reviews the widening range of programmes for adults and 

children  

 

Creativity can be the straw we grasp when drowning. If the vulnerability associated with mental 

illness lowers our resistance sufficiently to allow our innate creativity full voice, then how many 

of us can deny that we are vulnerable in some measure, or that we are creative? 

 

In that creativity Arc�s participants, volunteers, associates, social work students, project 

managers, staff and directors are founded, and reach out. 
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Arc�s New Vision � How Art Works 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As a society we have lost our way. But we are afraid to admit it, even though work-related stress 

and debt related depression are rampant. I believe the arts can make a difference. The arts 

reflect our beliefs, values and aspirations. I am an atheist, but I am profoundly interested in 

myth. Not mythology, which is no more than dusty statues and dead stories, but in its living 

expression as a system whose purpose is to bring meaning to life, and life to meaningful 

purpose.  

 

Democracy is not the freedom to do as one pleases, but the very fabric of social responsibility. 

As capitalism drives us over the cliff of ruin, that social responsibility is our only recourse. Active 

citizenship is about changing what you can reach. It is about doing unto others, as we would 

have them do unto us. Be all you can be, provided you do not prevent others thereby from doing 

likewise. We must look beyond our own narrow lives, to the enrichment of the lives of others. 

And through giving, we will receive.  

 

 

What do we need a poet for? 
 

Why, to save the city, of course! 
 

Aristophanes 
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Our values must become once again our operant myths � and the forms and functions of our 

creative nature are the means by which we can recognise, celebrate and transform the world. 

As Joseph Campbell said, life has no meaning but the meaning we bring to it. This does not 

mean that life is meaningless, for that despair is what will destroy us. We must be the meaning.  

 

We must put our values at the very centre of our lives, pay it forward, and so save the world. 

 

�How Art Works� is a 5-year study commissioned by the United States Government, published 

in 2012. It provides strong evidence that when the arts are active, a community knows itself, has 

a sense of its own unique identity. Its citizens have confidence that they can meet any 

challenge. Education, employment, enterprise all flourish. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
When people engage in art, they themselves may change and �grow,� they and their 
communities can become more vital. More indirectly, a healthy and robust engagement in the 
arts can raise the aptitude of a society for invention, creativity, and expression.  
 
The arts improve quality of life, which contributes to society�s capacity to invent, create, and 
express itself. Over time, such changes can be profound. They can manifest as differences in 
people�s cognitive, social, and emotional development. Engagement in art can expand the 
perspectives a person can take, deepen one�s appreciation of things new and familiar, facilitate 
or enhance a feeling of spirituality, and lead to a sense of connection that was not originally 
present. Within a community�a collection of people bound by some common element, be it 
geography, history, an area of interest, or some other shared characteristic� engaging in art 
can foster a sense of identity and belonging. It can promote and signal cultural vitality and 
communal values such as a tolerance of diversity and an openness to questions. These 
communal values are ties that bind. At their best, such ties contribute to unity, identity, a sense 
of solidarity, higher levels of civic engagement, and ultimately the expectation of the right to 
culture.  
 
Arts engagement produces local economic activity. Geographically bound communities where 
artists have settled tend to produce higher real estate values, more tourism, and the growth of 
entertainment industries. There are also indirect economic benefits. Maybe through local policy 
and support, through the availability of inexpensive space that can be used as an artist�s studio, 
or through the appeal of sharing a community of kindred souls, artists concentrate in a given 
area. Arts patrons frequenting the area may spur local revenue growth through food and drink 
purchases, hotel stays, and tourism spending with the long-term effect that the neighbourhood is 
now economically better off. 
 

How Art Works  
The National Endowment for the Arts� Five-Year Research Agenda 

September 2012 
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Many years ago I attended an international art camp at Kasauli in the foothills of the Himalayas. 

The renowned British artist Ken Kiff was among those attending, along with French and German 

artists, Indian artists, dancers and writers. Kasauli perches on an escarpment fully 8000 feet 

above the plains of India. The river Jumna glitters in the intense sunlight as it snakes its way 

southward. The lights of Chandigarh glitter in the night, like a galaxy that has fallen to Earth. In 

such a magical setting, the creative experience could not fail to be intensified. 

 

One night I had a dream, so vivid I thought I was wakeful. In my dream, I rose from my bed and 

stepped out from my tiny cabin into the darkness beyond.  I walked up the short rise to the main 

bungalow, and in the dining room I saw standing in the shadows a fellow artist. She handed me 

a bottle of milk, and told me to put it in the huge white fridge in the corner of the room. I did as 

she bid, whereupon, the bottle started to glow with an intense bright light. The energy 

transfused me, and as it did so, I levitated, flew out of the dining room window, and soared high 

over the Jumna. 

 

From this dream I do not think I will ever awaken. For as in the dream, to me, creativity is what 

drives the machinery of life. It is what the Zoroastrians call our fravashi, literally, our spirit of the 

road. So it is with absolute conviction that I believe Arc can make a real difference. Our work 

has only just begun. 

 

It will very soon be ten years since MAPS separated from Stockport Mind to become Arc, which 

had in turn been ten years since the founding of MAPS. Each growth ring marks a decade. Now 

we anticipate the next cycle of growth.  

 

This year has given us valuable time to think deeply about the new model, in which �Arc @ 

Castle Yard� will be one of three strong components (see Figure 1). The Reddish Studios where 

we have been based since 1997 will now become �The Challenge Centre�. The two centres will 

have quite different functions, but will be strongly linked together. Intertwined with both centres, 

the third strand of our work will be �Arc in the Community� a focused approach to community 

outreach. 

 

Through the model we envision, we aim to address society �its true potential and the ailments 

that block fulfilment of that potential. As amply demonstrated in How Art Works, by igniting the 

creativity that lies dormant within our community, we will catalyse change.  

 

We will not wait to be told what to do. We already know. Like Ueli Steck, we will move forward 

quickly, with resilience and determination. 
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We will not � we cannot - do this alone. But if not us � and those who think like us - then who?  

 

And if not now, then when?  

 

 

 
 
The Challenge Centre 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A couple of years ago Arc was invited by G4S to become one of their specialist providers in 

delivering the work programme. At the time, I was delighted to be invited. It was clear that the 

work programme would have a significant impact on vulnerable people, and I was hopeful that 

Arc would find a positive role in preparing people for a future in which they would be 

encouraged to think positively about their aspirations. I hopefully attended a number of 

promotional events run by G4S but became increasingly concerned about the approach they 

were taking. They did not seem to have much genuine insight into the difficulties people with 

mental illness would have to surmount. The more they reassured me that they did, the less 

convinced I became. At one event, I repeatedly interrupted the overly slick and superficial 

presentation with questions to which I was not getting an answer. In the end, G4S never did use 

Arc as a specialist provider. Perhaps it is because I refused to accept explanations that did not 

I suggest that, with sufficient political imagination, and more crucially, will, a welfare third way 
could be opened up. My vision (nascent as it is) involves a guaranteed income scheme for 
those with long-term heath conditions. It would assume that people want to work when they 

are well enough. It would support them to find meaningful work that they would find 
rewarding, and to work the number of hours that best supports their health and well being. 

That work might be in the economic marketplace, or it might be doing things more traditionally 
classified as volunteering. Either way, it would be productive, meaningful activity that serves a 

genuine valuable function in society. 
Emma Lindley 
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convince me, I honestly don�t know, but I do know that if someone on the work programme 

relapses, G4S would not have to bear the high cost of their recovery. (It costs more to keep 

someone in an intensive care unit for a week than at Arc for a whole year.) Or it may have been 

a cynical exercise on G4S�s part, to build an impressive portfolio of partners and thus win the 

tender. Well, whatever the rights and wrongs of that, we now know that the Work Programme is 

failing to meet its minimum targets. Only 5% of those on the work programme have found jobs. 

The statistics show that it is especially failing vulnerable people.   

 

It is like being present at a traffic accident (Buster Keaton again, though now with tragic 

consequences). People we have worked with to rebuild their confidence suddenly find 

themselves in receipt of computer-generated letters informing them they are now fit for work. 

They are no longer entitled to incapacity benefit, which is being phased out. Employment 

support allowance replaces it, but is time limited. Appeals are held before a judge. 

 

Our fundraiser Tom Northey recently pointed me to an article in the Guardian Online about a 

man who failed to sign on because he was attending a job interview � the right decision as he 

thought. His benefits were stopped. Starving, he stole a sandwich from a supermarket. Caught, 

he could not afford to pay the fine. Sentenced, he was imprisoned. On his release, he was 

penniless. Free, but now he had no home. 

I feel especially angry about this when I think of slick presentations by G4S, and I�m glad we 

remained independent of them, simply because I want Arc to be part of radical solutions, not 

institutional failings. Indeed, what use would we be otherwise? 

 

The challenge we face is to find bespoke, personalised solutions that enable vulnerable people 

to overcome the barriers they face. In my experience they generally have the best 

understanding of their own needs. Of course everyone has aspirations, regardless of their 

vulnerabilities. But how on earth can those aspirations be met when the state sets so many 

obstacles in their way? 

 

Nor is it only people with mental illness that are particularly affected. The same is true for people 

with learning disabilities, and those with physical disabilities as well. 

 

 In last year�s report I began by saying, �Above all things Arc is a creative community, in which 

every person is valued for their contribution to its collective social, emotional and spiritual 

wealth.� 

 

A year on, and it is readily apparent that the Work Programme denies vulnerable people the 

time they need to recover. It is the �collective social, emotional and spiritual wealth� not of Arc, 

but the entire nation that is therefore at risk. 
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We know that we must be true to our values, and hold fast to the vision of an authentically 

inclusive society. 

 

So we felt we had to be radical in our approach to tackling the fall out from the work programme, 

and toiled long and hard to get funding to do this. The result is a new pilot, The Challenge 

Model. This provides a focus for supporting participants with clear aspirations who face barriers 

to their realisation. 

 

We began with a cadre of twelve participants, which has rapidly increased to 18. Before the pilot 

is half done, we know that we will seek funding to continue with the Challenge Model. Indeed, 

we have decided to rename the Reddish Studios as �The Challenge Centre�.  We will ally with 

other agencies facing similar challenges. 

 

Terry Dafter, Head of Adult Social Care at SMBC, once said to me "We are telling vulnerable 

people they are fit for work when they know they aren�t. We are telling them they must find work 

or lose benefits. Then we are telling them there are no jobs! So we have to find new solutions." 

The "challenge" is really therefore to us, to find ingenious ways to help marginalised and 

excluded people - no matter how vulnerable - to meet their aspirations. 
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Arc @ Castle Yard 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Again, last year I talked about the prospects of Arc moving to a town centre venue. Arc @ 

Castle Yard is at last becoming a reality thanks, dare I say, to our own resilience and the critical 

backing Arc has received from SMBC. 

 

The delays of the past year have turned out to be to our advantage, allowing much needed time 

for reflection. We know that the arts can transform communities. We know that we can do this 

more effectively from a high profile town centre venue. 

 

It is all too easy to be overwhelmed. Yet from the myriad projects we have undertaken in the 

past 18 years, we have a huge bank of experience to draw upon, and an inner core of resilience 

only the �school of hard knocks� can teach. 

 

We choose to embrace the various challenges we face as an opportunity to put our service to 

the question � can we come up with better answers for a changing world? 

 

At Arc we all believe we can. 

 
So at Castle Yard we aim to establish an arts centre, which will help the resurgence of the 

marketplace and help to make it the cultural focus of the town centre. We�ll contribute to the 

economic profile of the marketplace by attracting interest in the shop, gallery, café and family 

areas. There�ll be exhibitions, workshops, and bespoke arts and crafts for sale, thus attracting 

fresh custom to the benefit of adjacent businesses, encouraging people from beyond Stockport 

to shop here. 

 

We�ll connect Castle Yard to the Challenge Centre and our community outreach programme, 

promote �arts and culture for all� through an inclusive �whole population� approach, including all 

those who are typically socially excluded. We�ll base our approach on our existing gallery, studio 

programme and design service in Reddish where even the most vulnerable participants play an 

active role in running them.  We�ll mentor emerging artists and art groups who aspire to careers 

in the arts, developing people into practicing artists, designers, potters, jewellers, etc., who will 

in turn contribute to the economy of Stockport. This will include - but not be restricted to - our 

"To  establish a dynamic arts hub in the marketplace where a new creative quarter is evolving, 
in order to improve Stockport's economic and cultural profile; interlinking with other key 

venues and agencies, providing  opportunities for creatives to flourish;  reaching out into 
communities, engaging people of all ages and backgrounds who aspire to careers in the 

creative industries." 
 Arc�s Castle Yard Mission Statement 
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vulnerable participants. We�ll help everyone. Ultimately, we�ll build a colony of creative people in 

the town centre, similar to the Northern Quarter in Manchester. 

 

We�ll also provide work experience and career opportunities in retail and marketing; maintaining 

working partnerships with agencies that can offer stepping-stones to career pathways for 

participants who engage with us. 

 

We�ll establish a pro-active arts network in partnership with SMBC, MMU, Stockport Art Gallery 

and many others. Together we�ll promote the Stockport brand as a cultural centre with a 

reputation for excellence and innovation.  We�ll reach beyond Stockport to make links with 

similar arts and cultural centres elsewhere, including arrangements for cultural exchange, 

travelling exhibitions and events.  
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Arc in the Community 
In Brinnington we have sought to catalyse change by working closely with local community 

groups. In partnership with Let�s Go Global, Arc launched the Brinnington Arts Festival last year, 

and it has now been successfully repeated, with a third festival in the offing. It has even been 

"cloned" in Offerton as "O'Fest", to be staged later this year. In turn, O�Fest builds on the highly 

regarded work associate artist Jo Hall has done there. 

 

As we have progressed, other fruitful partnerships have formed � with Refugee Action and 

Rising Stars for instance. 

 

Our work in Brinnington has also brought us into partnership with SMBC�s Neighbourhood 

Management team, and this has been a crucial factor in successful delivery. Several new self-

led groups have emerged from this initiative.  

 

Meanwhile Stockport Homes has taken over the running of First House and other community 

centres across the borough. Our hope is that Stockport Homes, like SMBC before them, will 

appreciate the added value we bring and work in partnership with us. 

 
The past year has seen many changes to services with the promise of many more. In particular, 

staffing cuts to statutory services have begun to impact significantly. Teams are smaller, where 

they exist at all. This contraction will continue into the foreseeable future. SMBC urgently wants 

the support of the third sector in plugging the emerging gaps. Arc�s new model is designed to do 

this. 

 

Our community programme will be the stream that connects our two centres. We will use it to 

cascade our offer across all Stockport neighbourhoods to reach isolated people wherever they 

live, thus aiming to prevent severe illness or significant relapse. 

 
We�ll work in partnership with statutory and voluntary agencies to export exhibitions, workshops 

and other services across Stockport, and thereby improves both awareness of and access to 

our centres. And we�ll do our level best to integrate the above with prevailing and future 

strategies; for example health and social care, and economic regeneration.  

 

Equally important to us is our partnership at Stepping Hill Hospital, where we deliver activities in 

the Adult Mental Health Unit and the Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit. 

 

In really effective partnerships, each partner brings something different to the table. I want to 

make sure that Arc is best positioned with our arts offer. Coupled with this, I see a need to bring 

different aspects of society into closer proximity with each other. If we address culture, health 

and community as separate we will miss the synergies created by all three together.  
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Awards for All and the Equity Foundation are supporting our work with older people. 
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Funding from Children in Need and the Evan Cornish Foundation is funding Young People�s 

Arc. 

 

The Esmee Fairbairn Foundation enabled us to establish the Challenge Pilot Project. 

 

Lloyds Foundation for England and Wales has supported core costs. 

 

John Grant Davies Trust supports our Arclight project for the most vulnerable participants in our 

studio programme.  

 

Conclusion 

In February of this year Arc�s board and senior management team was privileged to be part of 

Cisco�s Advanced Development Programme. This was organised for us by Tom Northey from 

Con Brio Consulting and Alison Reid from Brightlife. Its purpose was to build leadership skills 

among Cisco personnel, and we saw how it might bring similar benefits to Arc as we are on the 

cusp of significant growth. Brightlife believe that people and organisations deliver exceptional 

results when they have:  

 

� a clear purpose that is meaningful and shared 
 
� leadership to make it happen, and 
 
� communication that builds connection and authenticity. 
 

A group of five Cisco managers spent two days with us to understand � and critique � how Arc 

operates. Cisco is a worldwide company of course. Managers came from far and wide. They 

included Henning Schultz (Germany), Lior Goldgraber (Israel), Debbie Mayfield (Dubai), Aarti 

Gurnani (UK), and Mohammad Al-Absi (Saudi Arabia). This intensive interaction was a healthy 

examination of Arc�s vision, management, and strategic planning. We found this hugely 

stimulating, and learned much from our Cisco friends even as they declared the same.  

 

The potential value of sharing insights and resources with other agencies is clearly vast. So 

since the Cisco event we have been actively searching for other partnerships. Most promisingly, 

we have begun a relationship with Cheshire Connect through Business Connector Louise 

Cornes. Cheshire Skills Share will source pro bono professional expertise to help Arc develop 

our vision for the new model, and in particular, Arc @ Castle Yard. This we anticipate will 

include legal advice, promotion and marketing, retail and business development. In return, Arc 

will actively promote Cheshire Connect, and offer Castle Yard as a venue for meetings and 

events. 
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This enables us to think about other relationships, in particular regarding sponsorship, which will 

be vital if Arc is to flourish when it is running twin centres of art and learning. We are hopeful 

that we will establish a long list of sponsors who will see mutual benefit in supporting us as we 

strive to address the recondite economic problems that afflict Stockport. 

 

To do this, we are working closely with SMBC�s Regeneration Team, especially George Perrin 

and Henrietta Achampong. As soon as the tenancy agreement for Castle yard has been signed, 

our friends at Carillion are waiting to get started on the fit out. 

 

Meanwhile, in anticipation of all this, we have been thinking about the Arc brand, with the two 

centres in mind. Our own Diane Pagan has responded to the challenge with alacrity. 

 

As an indication of our optimism, I will sign off by unveiling our new livery. 

 
 

 

 

Michael Anderson 

Chief Executive 
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Artistic Director�s Report 
 
 

 
 
 
 �Arc to me signifies a Tree, (Olive Tree , Blossom Tree, Tree of Life call it what you want).  It 

means new beginnings, helping me regain my confidence and identity.  

 

�Because of Arc, and the confidence I gained through doing the volunteer work there, selling my 

work, and making new friends, I enrolled on a few college courses.  I am now in a new job as a 

Health Care Assistant for Children and Young Adults with learning difficulties.�   Lynne Foy, 

participant 

 

At the core of Arc is a belief that arts engagement - creating it or experiencing it - is an essential 

factor of health and happiness.  It can measurably increase confidence � in one�s self and in 

one�s ability to achieve.  And when we feel confident, we are much more able to achieve and to 

fulfill our potential.  Over the past 18 years we have seen again and again how the arts is an 

effective vehicle for groups and individuals to focus their aspirations on and work towards a 

goal, and that it can have a significant impact on all aspects of a person�s life way beyond the 

timescale of any single project.  This year has been no different. 

 

In 2013/14 Arc has engaged with hundreds of people across Stockport and offered them 

opportunities to create or experience creativity. 
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Engagement 

* in the studio  *  YPA  * partnerships *  BAF & the community programme * 

 

In the studio programme in Reddish, we have worked with 140 people, 95 of whom attended 

activities on a regular basis. We regularly met with participants, to review their situations, and 

discuss their aspirations.  Many described an increase in confidence, in the ability to 

communicate and form friendships, to feel settled within the environment. 

 

Out of those 95 active participants, 35 became involved in volunteering (within Arc and/or 

externally), education or employment. This is a substantial increase on previous years and 

shows the impact of the tailored support, monitoring and opportunities offered to each 

participant by the Social Work student team, as well as through more developmental 

programmes in the Gallery and the Challenge project.  This real evolution in our model hasn�t 

been planned � but it indicates that we are progressing towards our aims of providing personal 

and professional development, of offering access to opportunity, of true pathways to recovery. 

 

 

 

 

 

Arclight is offered to the most vulnerable people wishing to attend Arc.  It is a highly supported 

activity, offering a more gentle approach to creative techniques.  Participants have successfully 

progressed from this to the Pathways programme, where they have explored an extraordinary 

range of creative activities.  In Pathways participants learn transferable skills and experience 

working in teams as well as individually.  It is the stepping stone from illness and isolation, to 

integration with the wider community, volunteering and peer support. 
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Arts for Living is targetted at maintaining and enhancing quality of life for participants, many of 

whom are our older participants.  Led by Stacey Coughlin, this year those attending Arts for 

Living have had some incredible opportunities to contribute to exhibitions and installations which 

showcase their collective talent.  They have explored all manner of materials from willow to 

maps, from environments made out of food, to fabric and paper collages.  Inventive, witty, 

imaginative displays were seen and admired in Arc�s Gallery and also at an Equity Housing 

Trust Fund event at Stockport Art Gallery. 

 

On Fridays, we host 2 self-led groups, HART and Archives, both of whom have successfully 

raised their own funding this year.  HART provides a creative space for women with experience 

of post-natal depression and reaches out to members of Beat the Blues, Pearl and Mums in Art. 

They work with guest artists, who bring new skills to the group as well as having regular slots for 

the members to create individual work, and work with their children during the holidays. 

 

 

 

�HART is my "escape"!  It�s my safe place where I know I can look forward to seeing a friendly 

face.  Whether I'm having a good or bad day it�s a chance to create or express.  The vast array 

of equipment is amazing and there is always someone there to guide and direct you if you want 

it.  Plus having the opportunity to spend a few minutes wandering round the gallery feels like an 

honour!  I feel so lucky to have stumbled across such a wonderful place.  It�s the highlight of my 

week.�      Hannah Findlay, HART participant 

 

�In this world of 'aaaaa' I find that HART allows me to find my 'oooo', a creative nurturing space 

that gently guides me to my inner space and let my creativity voice itself in colour. A place to 

learn, about art and myself, where there are always artful soulful enthusiasts willing to share or 

inspire� � Shamima Kaloo, HART participant 
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Archives is a weekly studio space for a group of self-directed artists who have been through 

Arc's programme.  This year, the group has participated in exhibitions at Arc as well as external 

events such as ReddFest and craft fairs, and it continues to grow and strengthen. 

 

 

 

 

2013/14 was the second full year of Young Persons Arc (YPA) - a dynamic programme of 

creative arts & media projects, targeted at engaging the most vulnerable young people in 

Stockport, and delivered in partnership with agencies from across the Borough. 

 

The YPA programme continued to be built on strong, vital partnerships with statutory and 

voluntary agencies, leading to effective working, thorough and meaningful evaluation, 

transparent processes � and, critically, the most number of vulnerable young people benefiting 

for the money!  

 

�The work is exciting to read about. You clearly monitor and evaluate your work carefully, using 

a range of methods, and this made the final report more meaningful.�     BBC Children in Need 

 

Whilst the partnership with Kite decreased, we maintained regular programmes with Mosaic (in 

their Treatment and COSMP Programmes), and with Jigsaw (Community CAMHS). We 

reactivated our relationship with the Ebony & Ivory Community Association. We put a stronger 

emphasis on working with all ages of the Young Carers and undertook a design commission 

with service users of the CAMHS at Stepping Hill.  
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Over the year we worked with 92 young people, from the age of 5 to 25, creating pictures, 

music, films, animations, models and stories. We worked with young people with substance 

misuse problems, children of substance misusing parents, young people in care with mental 

health needs, young people with emotional needs (not in mainstream school), young people 

living in priority neighbourhoods and young carers.  

 

All of our projects were designed to achieve a creative goal � whether that was to create 

something to share via the Gallery or the YPA website or whether it was to make something to 

take home. Our artists were highly skilled at setting a task which was fun and engaging, and 

which immediately enabled participants to start talking to each other. This shared experience 

helped to bring a sense of mutual support to the groups, and in several cases strong friendships 

emerged. 

 

Arc worked with young people who were dealing with a range of challenges.  Our support 

enabled them to have positive, creative time to themselves, improving wellbeing and emotional 

resilience.   

 

�When I look back to the early days of ML attending at Arc - he is a changed person � his 

behaviour is so much better as is his attitude towards himself and others. I also feel that his 

confidence regarding his artistic skill is growing. A real Arc success story.''     Laura Sanders, 

Mosaic Treatment Team Worker 

 

Away from the young people�s programme, Arc has also worked with other organisations over 

the year, exploring how our methodology can be deployed in new arenas.  The Social Work 

student team took on the responsibility of planning and facilitating the art activity programme in 

the Mental Health Unit at Stepping Hill Hospital, working closely with the OT team on the wards.   

A short project with Tameside Stroke Association began after a visit to an exhibition by Arc artist 

Andy Clayton. Discussions with Stroke Association staff and their service users led to a project 

facilitated by Charlotte Brown, culminating in a celebratory exhibition and press event at Arc�s 

Gallery. 

 

Arc associate, Stacey Coughlin, led a pilot project exploring potential partnerships with 

Beechwood Cancer Care.  Stacey also developed and funded a separate project with Care 

Homes, the Travelling Art Tent � Arc was glad to be able to work with her on this, providing 

some volunteers from our participants and a venue for the first stage of the exhibition.  Annette 

Naor and Diane Pagan continued the relationship with Abacus Childrens Centre, offering 

countless women with low self-esteem the chance to rebuild resilience, skills and friendships at 

a weekly arts session. 
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We also began collaboration with the Nelly Globe organization who offered some of our 

participants the chance to explore their own experiences through creating a personal art journal. 

This was a hugely thought-provoking and therapeutic process for many, and some have gone 

on to continue developing work on those themes across the week. 

 

Arc�s creative art and design agency, ArcMedia worked on several commissions this year.  This 

included branding for the first Stockport Creative Festival. In collaboration with Stockport 

Services for Young People and Stockport Council young apprentices, designer Annette Naor 

produced a brand identity and related assets, whilst providing the apprentices with a valuable 

skill-building experience. 

 

Annette trained the apprentices in a range of areas throughout the process from design 

principles and typography to artwork production and desktop publishing using the latest creative 

computer software. The branding has been rolled out and is now in circulation across the 

Borough. 

ArcMedia often crosses over with other Arc programmes, and as part of YPA this year, re-

designed the reception area and clinical rooms at CAMHS in Stepping Hill Hospital with service 

users at the forefront of the design.  The designer ran a series of creative workshops with 

CAMHS clients to design a space that appeals to children and adolescents between the ages of 

5-18.  

Arcmedia also worked with our long-time partners in the Mental Health Unit at Stepping Hill 

Hospital to develop a design solution transforming the bare walls on the Arden and Norbury 

wards into an attractive and calming space through a series of framed artwork. 

Focusing on the theme �bringing the outside in� the ward walls were filled with artwork 

celebrating the beauty of the local and natural environment, giving a sense of inspiration, peace 

and familiarity. This project incorporated artwork from several Arc artists. 

 

 

 

 

The second Brinnington Arts Festival took place in March 2013, bringing together artists, groups 

and residents in a week-long programme that celebrated all that is great about the creative 

community in Brinnington. 
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The theme of the festival was �Exploration!� and this encouraged a range of exciting arts 

opportunities � from exploring fashion and graffiti, to exploring Brinnington with a camera lens, 

exploring art and nature through different cultural traditions and creating feature lanterns to 

explore space!  It offered the chance to imagine and interpret, to learn and to be creative.   

 

Funding from the People�s Health Trust enabled us to focus on wellbeing.  Two new groups 

meant that more of Brinnington�s residents were able to get involved, including people who are 

vulnerable and who haven�t felt able to get involved before.  We were able to work with these 

groups in the months leading up to the festival, leading to some outstanding contributions.  The 

Arts Festival was co-ordinated by Arc and delivered as a partnership project with the local 

community, Lets Go Global and Neighbourhood Management, Stockport Council. 

 

Over six days, BAF inspired 21 community groups and organisations, 65 volunteers and 720 

participants of all ages to engage in a range of quality arts and crafts and cultural experiences, 

in an area that has some of the highest levels of socio-economic deprivation in Greater 

Manchester. 

 

Importantly we established a significant connection between the arts and wellbeing in 

Brinnington. Arc has seen that the festival has a significant impact personally, socially and 

economically � in terms of individual wellbeing, promoting a positive image of the area and in 

the economic value of volunteering.   

 

�A major impact was that the Festival offered a channel for the refugee participants to become 

part of their local community.  Without this, their talents, culture and stories would have 

remained hidden from view, something that we are aiming to change.� 

Julie Mansfield, Refugee Action. 

 

 

 

In future, we hope to develop more arts and health focused outreach work in communities in 

Stockport.  In 2014 we are working in partnership with SMBC and Stockport Homes towards the 
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first O�Fest in Offerton, and we are developing a Community Programme in the new model � a 

tailored provision of arts activities to engage vulnerable or isolated people in their own 

neighbourhoods or locations.  Our Community Programme will respond to need and be tailored 

to target our resources, to reach the people who need us most and to give them the skills to 

build their own creative community. 

 

 

Opportunities 

* exhibitions * team development * Challenge * 

 

 

 

 

The Gallery has continued to be our public face, the element of Arc that openly reaches out to 

everyone regardless of age, ability, diagnosis, and invites them in�.to engage with us, to 

create, and to share.  Countless people have exhibited in that space over the year � some 

trained, experienced artists, many new to this.  Often, as in the case of the textiles exhibition, 

Stitched Together, professional and non-professional artists presented work alongside each 

other with no distinction made or definition given. The art tells its own story in that lovely space, 

without prejudice or apology. 

 

This year, we hosted guest exhibitions from the David Lewis College, the Travelling Art Tent 

and Pennine Care NHS Trust.  These events brought the Gallery to the attention of new 

audiences and broadened our profile in the region. 

 

YPA once again filled the space with wonderful work � giant books on the floor, a massive 

denim map of Stockport on the wall, animations and songs playing, and many, many 

documentary photos of projects illustrating how the young people made, stuck, painted, 

designed, sculpted, and dreamt. 

 

The annual Art Bazaar, Summer Exhibition and the Arts for Living shows were opportunities for 

our own home-grown creatives to present their work and themselves to the wider world.  I do 

not underestimate the bravery that it takes to put something on display here � especially for the 



 

 43  

first time, when you may feel unconfident, unworthy, unskilled.  Our team of artsworkers, 

volunteers and students are dedicated to encouraging and supporting as many of our 

participants as possible to feel that it is their space and to spend time in it and reflect on each 

other�s work. 

 

Some of our artists were confident enough to exhibit a body of work � Rita Holland, Dawn Pickin 

and Suzie White had solo or shared shows.  Having a greater proportion of the whole space 

enabled them to tell their story and present a more complete picture of their creative journey.  

Their work was well received, many visitors wanting to purchase some, to meet the artists and 

understand their processes. 

 

�Wish You Were Here� was a celebration of landscape photography at Stockport Art Gallery 

which we presented around World Mental Health Day. It was a great challenge for three 

individual artists from Arc, Kar Rowson, Aeryn North and Katja Anneli. It was also a challenge 

for the Gallery team, working to strict deadlines, in a space that was unfamiliar, with different 

hanging systems and a bigger public presence.  Thanks must go to the team at Stockport Art 

Gallery, in particular Peter Holt and Che Finch, for their support and for giving us this fantastic 

opportunity. 

 

 

 

�Photography is my therapy and my favourite method of self expression. But I was a 

photographer who lost my way.  

Through the help and inspiration of some wonderful local organisations  

including Arc, I�m finding my mojo again.  

The safe and nurturing environment has given me the opportunity to develop as an artist in 

ways I hadn�t thought possible.  
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Photography is in my heart and my images are an expression of joy, love,  

quirkiness, being totally into something, relief, calmness, being at peace with  

myself, determination and strength, being healthy and happy, being on the  

inside, not on the outside. �       Kar Rowson, participant 

 

Back at the Arc Community Gallery, we used our open-to-the-public �Last Saturdays� to pilot a 

range of accessible arts and crafts activities alongside exhibition previews.  These were 

planned, promoted and delivered by the Gallery team. 

 

These events have generated a truly amazing atmosphere � warm, welcoming, inspiring.  All 

types of people are there, regardless of diagnosis.  Our team members are the experts at these 

events, leading visitors around the space, and in the activities.  All ages too, from 1 � 91, are 

able to take part in activities, share ideas, chat, laugh, eat cake, purchase a piece of art or a 

card, view new artwork  each and, most importantly, feel part of something good.   

 

�Such a variety of work � all superb, I keep looking at everything again and again � still finding 

new bits I missed!� 

 

�We have had a great time and I love my hand made book, thanks everyone.� 

 

�What a thought-provoking exhibition, Powerful words with stunning images � a great insight. 

Thanks for sharing.� 

 

�My daughter and I had a great time building and sticking together � good, quality time.� 

 

�Wow! Totally blown away by Rita�s beautiful work. She clearly is an artist oozing with creativity 

and I go away feeling very inspired.� 

 

�Lovely to see my daughter relaxed and gaining a little in confidence due to the welcoming 

atmosphere.� 

 

This is what we will build on at Castle Yard. 

 

For some years, we have used the development of a Gallery team as a way of offering 

mentoring and volunteering to vulnerable people who aspire to do more than participate.  And 

during this year we increased our team of aspiring participants and volunteers, and developed 

the idea of the �Challenge model� � which we are piloting in 2014.   
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Through Challenge, we explore whatever radical support, training, inspiration and work 

experience opportunities are needed to help a given participant achieve their aspirations.  This 

naturally leads to the development of a more capable, motivated and committed team, who 

share a deep understanding of our values.  Some of these people will find roles in the bigger 

model at Arc, many will use their experiences in other settings across Stockport. 

 

Increased traffic on our website and regular postings on social media, have enabled us to reach 

out and recruit and induct a bigger team of skilled volunteers to help run the programme. And 

our pool of professional artsworkers and project managers has increased, enabling us to offer a 

wide variety of projects and artforms across the model.  

 

�I attended an arts group as a participant in Sefton, which was a six month programme for those 

experiencing mental health difficulties, and realised I would one day like to be one of the ones 

who tries to help others overcome their own difficulties through the arts. 

Whilst studying for a jewellery design degree in 2011, instead of seeking a placement with a 

jeweller as others did I decided to seek a volunteer opportunity with an arts and health 

organisation. I wanted to work with people, so I emailed Arc and here we are, 3 years later! 

 

�Although I didn't join Arc as a participant, being a part of it has helped me immeasurably. 

Having not taken the "normal" educational and professional routes, Arc has given me the 

opportunity to see what I am good at, gain confidence, and be part of a community that I think is 

very special, and great fun! I don't think I'd have been able to get to the point I am at now so 

quickly without Arc. Yes, my mental health has improved, but without that shot of confidence I 

don't know if I would be where I am now - self-employed and not scared about it all the time, not 

on disability benefit anymore and not terrified about what might happen next! I hope my 

experiences can inspire or comfort others!�      Lucie Fitzpatrick, volunteer and associate artist 

 

 

Aspirations 

* Arc @ Castle Yard * the new model * 
 

In 2013/14 we have been working with more than one eye on the future. We have asked 

ourselves questions such as �What do we want to create?  What can we offer?  Where is the 

best place for it?  How does it survive?� We have piloted and rehearsed things in order to 

develop a broad and sustainable model, which Michael has described. 

 

Not all experiments work � but we thrive on trying things out, not always being able to predict 

the outcome, relishing the risk.  Creative thinkers are inventing all the time, making something 

out of nothing. 
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I feel that my focus for the year ahead is quite straightforward - to make Arc @ Castle Yard a 

reality, a living space filled with art, interaction, connectivity. 

 

It is only one part of our new model � but, as the most public element, it is key.  It must be bold 

and bright.  It must capture the imagination.  It must maximise potential and fight the pervading 

negativity and stigma. 

 

It will connect to the Challenge Centre in Reddish and the Community Programme, providing 

many genuine and valuable experiences and opportunities for vulnerable people. 

 

We will establish a place where people are discovered creating - and where anyone can meet 

and join them, to find out more, to have a go, to discover why someone feel compelled to make 

art, to glimpse the possibilities of a creative approach to their life, to feel inspired.  Picture some 

of our artists drawing, painting, making whilst staffing the shop, or facilitating activities whilst 

building their confidence and self-efficacy�..  alongside established artists and craftspeople 

from across Stockport using it as a base for networking, showcasing and teaching. 

 

 

 

Castle Yard will enable a higher profile for our work, a vista on the town, a hub for information, 

celebration and for sharing.   

 

We have some amazing artists who work with us � as professional leads, associate project 

managers or volunteer facilitators on projects in the studio, in the community and in the YPA 

scheme.  At Castle Yard we can showcase their work, and celebrate what they do with us as 

well as in their own practice, and join the dots between the two. 
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The new Gallery space will present our work in a context of regional and national trends, 

movements and organizations.  It will feature guest and touring work on a national as well as a 

local scale, bringing new characters to Stockport and broadening our understanding of 

contemporary art.  It will be a platform for issues that are relevant, for voices that should be 

heard.   

It needs to be a place where emerging enterprise, however vulnerable, is celebrated, and 

connected to the wider world. 

 

If successful, Castle Yard will be a place where you can find artwork which affects you, where 

you leave a little different than when you entered, where you feel motivated to create by what 

you�ve seen, where you can be open to new ideas and where you can relax. 

 

�My time at Arc has felt brief but in it I have undergone a gradual but profound change.  When I 

began at Arc, I had just come out of the other end of a very dark tunnel as a result of post natal 

depression. I was welcomed with no prejudice or pressure. 

At the start I was quite timid and really lacked in confidence. I was eager to show I was an 

active participant but I didn't really know how I could contribute. 

As the weeks passed by, I began to grow in confidence. I was trusted with responsibilities, and 

welcomed to take part in facilitation and exhibitions. This gave me such a sense of purpose that 

I went from seeing myself as someone who could just help out, to genuinely seeing that my 

future will be one immersed in art. I now know that however hard it may be, I have the support 

from Arc to pave a way to a happy future for myself and my family. This is particularly poignant 

because a year ago I never even thought I would create a single piece of art again- thus leaving 

my fine art degree pointless. I thought I was worthless and had wasted thousands of pounds on 

a degree I felt ashamed of (because I wasn't living up to what I had worked and paid for) 

 

Now my family sees such a difference in me when I am involved and this sense of well-being 

has turned our lives around.�      Penny Alexander, volunteer 

 

With Castle Yard on the horizon, the coming year is full of change, full of potential.  It�s a 

massive challenge to our resources and resourcefulness, but a great adventure, unpredictable 

and different. We will embrace the challenges, and embody Castle Yard with our confidence 

and a spirit of adventure. 

 

Nothing stays the same � the Arc that I can describe here now is unrecognisable in many ways 

from 'Maps' back in the late nineties.  We have always prided ourselves on being responsive to 

change.  We have developed a highly flexible methodology and team, capable of working in 

extremely varied settings.   
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We often describe Arc as a community, a creative community.  But that does not mean that we 

are all homogenized, that we follow one path together, simultaneously.  We are a collection of 

individuals and each person�s journey and experience of Arc is unique.  There is joy in 

witnessing the twists and turns in someone�s journey and in not being able to predict the 

journey�s outcome. And we can genuinely say that we learn from the outcomes. 

 

We understand that every individual who engages with us carries the potential for change � by 

going on a journey with us.  This might be us leading the way initially, but increasingly it can be 

said that our work is affected by a spark or passion that an individual brings to us.  When 

something new is shared in the Gallery space, people are fired up.  When an artist facilitates a 

remarkable process in, for example YPA, a potential new approach or skill opens up the whole 

programme.  We have learnt to adapt, and to embrace the risk of trying something different, 

rehearsing it, testing it in our laboratory.  

 

This year, perhaps more than any, we have experienced profound change.  Arc�s journey 

doesn�t end when someone leaves us.  Sometimes change happens for very good reasons, 

sometimes it is forced upon us by tragedy.  Either way we have to adapt, move on and try to 

survive. 
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Structure, governance and management 
  
 Governing document 

The Company is controlled via its Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Board meets at least six times per 
year and is responsible for policy and the strategic direction of the Company. The Company inherited the policies and 
procedures operated by Stockport MIND. 
Since 1st April 2005, the Board has been undertaking a detailed review of the key policies of the Company and refining 
or re-stating them for implementation in the Company. 

  
 Company status 

The company is limited by guarantee and all members have agreed to contribute a sum not exceeding £1 in the event 

of a winding-up.  The number of guarantees at 31st March 2014 was 7. 
  
Recruitment and appointment of Directors 
Directors are recruited from a number of sources, including personal recommendation, Business in the Arts North 
West, Reach, ex Social Work Student placements and ex-participants Arc.  The Board has defined the skill profiles 
required for its make up and seeks people with the necessary background experience. The Board actively seeks to 
establish a diversity of backgrounds and experience of its members. 
Prospective directors are invited to tour the premises and to meet key people. They are subsequently interviewed by 
the Board and required to present a personal statement of their potential contribution to Arc. They are made aware of 
their responsibilities and are also required to provide two referees who are contacted before appointment is ratified. All 
directors are checked via the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS), previously CRB before appointment. 
 
Induction and training of trustees  
New trustees are given a pack containing information about Arc, its policies and procedures, and the roles and 
responsibilities of trustees. They are invited to attend training courses relevant to their roles. 
 
Organisational structure 
The Chairperson leads the Board and has a close working relationship supporting the Chief Executive. The Chief 
Executive reports to the Board and attends every Board meeting. All Board members are encouraged to have contact 
with the executive management, particularly when their specialist expertise is required. 
The Finance Director has a steady involvement with the day to day running of the finances of the Company. 
 
Risk management 
The Company has undertaken a comprehensive Risk Assessment and established a policy of regular checking of all 
the activities of the Company for risk. A comprehensive Risk Assessment is undertaken annually with regular monthly 
checks made and reported to the Board. Health and Safety is an item on the agenda of every Board meeting. DBS 
checks are carried out for everyone who works or volunteers for Arc, including staff, associate artists and social work 
students. Policies and procedures are reviewed annually. Insurance is in place to cover all liabilities. There are sub-
committees in place to manage finance and complaints. 
  
Related parties 
The Company operates independently and there are no related party transactions. Board members and their 
immediate relatives have no contractual relationships, other than at arm�s length, with any suppliers or fund providers. 
 
 

Objectives and activities 
 
Objects and aims 
The Company is established to relieve sickness and protect mental good health through the use of the arts and 
creative activity in North West England, in particular but not exclusively in Stockport. 
The aims of the Company are to promote positive images of mental health by facilitating high quality arts projects, 
which reach out into the community and encourage service users to take further steps towards education, 
volunteering or employment. It seeks to empower the service users to develop their personal potential and to connect 
with the wider community. 
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Activities undertaken for public benefit in relation to objects 
In planning our activities for the year we kept in mind the Charity Commission�s guidance on public benefit. Regular 

reports on activities were submitted to the directors at board meetings from the Chief Executive and the Artistic 
Director to enable the directors to monitor progress. This and other mechanisms, such as the annual rolling strategic 
plan, enabled the trustees to ensure that new and current activities are in line with the company�s aims and objectives 

and the Charity Commission�s guidance. 
 
Objectives 
Each year our directors review the objectives and activities to ensure they continue to reflect our aims. In carrying out 
this review the directors have considered the Charity Commission�s general guidance on public benefit. The 
Company�s objectives are: 
 
 To enhance, promote and maintain recovery, recognising that recovery means different things to different 

people. 
 
 To encourage social and creative skills development and the confidence to explore opportunities in education, 

volunteering and employment when it is helpful to do so. 
 
 To promote social inclusion. 
 
Strategies  
The following strategies will be followed in order for Arc to achieve its objectives: 
1. To further develop Arc as a social enterprise including a gallery, design service and outreach service, so that it 

engages and motivates participants to undertake commissions, web site developments, exhibitions and creative 
partnerships, in so doing to give participants a breadth of experience enabling them to meet their aspirations.  

2. To develop a community programme which reaches out to the wider community in a whole population approach to 
health and wellbeing, both to encourage participation externally and to invite others into the internal community. 

 
Use of volunteers 
Volunteers play a valued role in supporting studio-based and outreach activities, and in social enterprise development. 
All volunteers are carefully matched to activities and roles to ensure the right balance between their aspirations and 
the needs of the organisation. Many volunteers have an art background, and are increasingly drawn from the roster of 
past participants, so that it represents the next step in their personal development. Arc�s trustees also give freely of 

their time to support staff, help run activities, maintain our premises, and consult on details of strategy and 
fundraising. All volunteers are DBS checked.  

 
Achievements and performance 

 
How our activities achieve public benefit 
The charity carries out a wide range of activities in pursuance of its charitable aims. The directors consider that these 
activities, summarised below, provide benefit to those who attend activities in our facilities, participate in our outreach 
programme, and the wider community of Stockport. Through the development of new partnerships and projects, Arc is 
constantly seeking new ways to benefit ever more people in the community. 
 
Participation 
140 participants took part in Arc�s core studio programme for vulnerable adults in 13/14, an increase of 37 over 12/13. 
Of these 103 were women (an increase of 25) and 37 men (an increase of 12). Over the year, average attendance 
was calculated at 2 attendances per week per participant, which means that over a 49-week programme, there were 
an estimated 13,720 attendances for activity sessions, an increase of 3626 attendances over 12/13. This excludes 
attendances for other reasons, such as the advocacy and support service offered by the team of six social work 
students; individual reviews; and task orientated participation such as mounting exhibitions, managing craft stalls, and 
so on (for which statistics are not kept).  
 
Many participants who left in 2013/14 did so with a successful outcome. 11 participants returned to employment 
(an increase of 8 over 12/13), 6 went to college or university (an increase of 3 over 12/13), 19 took up 
volunteering (an increase of 18 over 12/13), 18 moved on to other services or ceased attending for other reasons, 
95 continued to attend, and only 1 relapsed.  
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To achieve these outcomes, Arc underpins participation with a number of measures designed to give each 
participants the best possible chance to join, flourish, and move forward with their lives.  
 
Information about Arc is regularly sent to referring agencies, including Community Mental Health Teams, GP 
surgeries, libraries and information services, to enable anyone who might benefit from Arc to know about what we 
offer. 
 
A team of social work students, supervised by the Chief Executive and the Artistic Director, manages referrals, 
advocacy and support. No one who wishes to join Arc is excluded from consideration for participation and we strive to 
ensure that everyone who might benefit has the opportunity to do so. Because the service is always over-subscribed 
and we must make best possible use of our limited resources, we must ensure that places are offered to those who 
have a clear need for and will make good use of the opportunities we offer. We must also ensure the ongoing safety 
and stability of groups, projects, sessions and activities and carefully assess the ability of individuals who are referred 
to Arc to integrate safely and successfully.  
 
Anxious attendees are encouraged to have a support worker, friend or relative attend alongside them until they have 
grown accustomed to the studios and feel part of the group. Care is taken to maintain a safe, convivial environment 
that helps participants to maintain their involvement.  
 
We carefully monitor attendance and follow up with participants who have not been attending to ensure that they are 
well, and to encourage them to re-attend. If participants need support with unrelated issues such as benefits or 
housing, a social work student will be assigned to their support, and other services will be contacted if necessary.  
 
Participants are regularly reviewed and an outcomes monitoring process is used to track individual progress. 
 
Arc�s schedule of programmed activities changes periodically to ensure variety and encourage an open, flexible 
approach to learning. Wherever possible, participants are encouraged to view their involvement in Arc as a 
steppingstone to other opportunities. Participants who wish to explore next level opportunities, such as further 
education, volunteering or employment are supported through the process. Each participant�s progress is reviewed 

regularly, to ensure that they are receiving the support they need. Every participant is encouraged to draw up a 
personal development plan for the coming year. Arc now has a personal development worker whose responsibility is 
to review individual participants� progress. This worker also liaises with the social work student team so that newer 

participants make a smooth transition to intermediate and advanced level participation.  
 
Regular updates are circulated to participants containing information about the studio programmes, exhibitions, other 
news and opportunities. Regular feedback from participants about what they want Arc to provide is sought through 
informal contact and questionnaires.  
 
 
The Studio Programme 
The studio programme consists of a range of activities designed to address varying levels of interest and aspiration.  
�Pathways to Recovery� provides opportunities to learn skills in a wide range of art forms and is geared mainly to 
those who wish to develop careers in the arts. �Arts for Living� places the emphasis more on arts as therapeutic 

diversion. �Arclight� is a short term experience for the most vulnerable clients, focused on confidence-building and 
avoidance of relapse.  
 
The Arc studios also hosts two self led groups: �Hart�, a self-led group for women recovering from postnatal 
depression, and �Archives�, a self led group of vulnerable adults who have moved on from our other programmes and 
are in transition back to the community. 
 
Mondays are given over to social enterprise development, centered on Arc�s Community Gallery exhibition calendar, 

web site, and professional design service. These provide opportunities for participants to further develop their skills, 
including exhibition curation, retail, marketing, web design, and commissions. 
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Young People�s Arc 
Arc continued to deliver a varied programme of arts-based activities for children and young people at high risk of 
emotional/psychological distress across Stockport. We worked in partnership with key agencies who helped with 
referrals, risk assessment, staffing, so that the young people could get the most out of working with Arc's artists 
and staff. 
 
Over the year we worked with 92 young people, from the age of 5 to 26. This included young people with 
substance misuse problems, children of substance misusing parents, young people in care with mental health 
needs, young people with emotional needs (not in mainstream school), young people living in priority 
neighbourhoods and young carers.  
 
The majority of young people achieved good progress during the year. All of our projects were designed to 
require teamwork, to achieve a creative goal. Our artists were highly skilled at setting a creative task which was 
fun and engaging, and which immediately enabled participants to start talking to each other. This shared 
experience helped to bring a sense of mutual support to the groups, and in several cases strong friendships 
emerged. 

Arc worked with young people who were dealing with a range of challenges.  Our support enabled them to have 
positive, creative time to themselves, improving wellbeing and emotional resilience.   

Feedback from young people during 2013/2014:  

'I am proud of my unborn baby's plate [that I made]'  MOSAIC participant  

'[I enjoyed]...The painting, mixing the colours and it felt good seeing the picture. Working with new people, the 
drawing and getting along with people.' COSMP participant 

'Thank you so much for all you have done for us for the last few weeks. Please do this again and invite me I loved 
it.' Jigsaw/CAMHS participant. 

Partner agency observations:  

�When I look back to the early days of ML attending at Arc - he is a changed person � his behaviour is so much 
better as is his attitude towards himself and others. I also feel that his confidence re his artistic skill is growing. A 
real Arc success story.'' 

The programme was funded by SMBC Main Grants (Children) and Children in Need, who commented on the 
evaluation document we provided at the end of the year,  �This was a brilliant report, thoughtful and clear and the 
work is exciting to read about. You clearly monitor and evaluate your work carefully, using a range of methods, 
and this made the report more meaningful. Thank you! � 

  
 

Arc Community Gallery 
The Arc Community Gallery hosted a varied programme of exhibitions in 2013/14, including group shows, individual 
artists and external or guest exhibitions.  We also exhibited at Stockport Art Gallery and had regular programmes at 
the Oasis café at Stepping Hill Hospital and Jones Gough Solicitors in Hazel Grove. 
 
The Gallery hosted specific promotional events featuring some of our partnership work during the year, as well as 
being a venue for some YPA activities and training workshops.  So over the course of 13/14, the Gallery had a wider 
use than in previous years and was generally acknowledged to be an exciting, stimulating and inspirational space in 
which to work, and to celebrate the completion of projects such as the Tameside Stroke Association project. 
 
Exhibitions in 2013/2014: 

 Sweet Inspiration  - Rita Holland 

 Young People�s Arc 

 Take Me or Leave Me � a showcase from the David Lewis College 

 Arc Summer Exhibition 
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 Arts for Living 

 Revolution of Mind � artwork from Pennine Care NHS Trust 

 Two�s Company � the artwork of Dawn Pickin & Suzie White 

 The Art Bazaar 

 Floating Away � the Travelling Art Tent 

  
      And 
 

 Wish You Were Here � a celebration of landscape photography at Stockport Art Gallery 
 

                                               
Community Programme  
Arc ran many projects out in the community throughout the year, including ongoing projects with children�s centres in 
Brinnington and Adswood, a mural commission for Stepping Hill�s new adult mental health wards, as well as the 
ongoing programme of activities in the Adult Mental Health Unit at Stepping Hill Hospital. 
 
Arc is constantly trying to pioneer new approaches to the uses of the arts in building a healthy society. Much of our 
community programme has focused on Brinnington, an area of high deprivation. This culminated in the second 
Brinnington Arts Festival at the end of the year and this is covered in more detail below. The festival model is now 
being replicated in Offerton. 
 
The Brinnington Arts Festival 
The first Brinnington Arts Festival in 2013 was the first ever arts festival of its kind in Brinnington, where Arc acted as 
a catalyst to bring together artists, groups and residents in a celebration of all that is great about their community.  
 
The second festival took place in March 2014 and built upon the success of the first. 
 
The purpose of the festival was to engage local people in quality arts and cultural experiences - encouraging and 
supporting local arts groups and engaging new participants in a range of dynamic and exciting arts opportunities. It 
offered the chance to learn what others in the community were doing, to be creative, try out different things, celebrate 
local talent and be part of an inspired and enthusiastic community.  
 
As part of the week long programme of activity, groups took part in the festival to showcase their creative work and 
achievements. It built on the huge success of events that already exist locally such as the annual Lantern Parade and 
other arts projects such as the Craft Club, Brinnington Arts & Music and the Brinnington Open Art Exhibition.  
 
The Arts Festival was led by Arc and delivered as a partnership project with the local community in Brinnington, Lets 
Go Global and Neighbourhood Management, Stockport Council.  

 
Brinnington experiences high levels of socio-economic deprivation and is one of Stockport�s priority neighbourhoods. 

Neighbourhood Management partners are committed to working with local residents to improve everybody�s life 

chances through access to employment and training, improved health and activity, quality housing and green space, 
volunteering and community safety.  
 
Through making the connection between the potential of the arts and the development of strong, inclusive 
communities, the festival aimed to leave a legacy of opportunities and connections, and enhance a positive image of 
the area. 
 
The objectives for Brinnington Arts Festival are rooted in Arc�s vision of a healthy society, where people get to create 

together, make their own choices, share support and take responsibility, regain their confidence and find reason to 
hope for a brighter future.  
 
The objectives are also embedded within the common evaluation framework of the Greater Manchester Arts Vision, 
which seeks to strengthen the contribution of art within the four key priority outcome areas of: prosperity, people, 
place and partnerships. The objectives have been co-produced by the participants themselves, as they contributed at 
the registration stage with their hopes and aspirations for the festival and these were used to determine the project 
specific outcomes.  
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These objectives are:  
 

 To ensure that the community of Brinnington has the opportunity to experience and enjoy a range of arts 
activities  

 
 To build on the work and skills of existing groups using different creative mediums to showcase their talents 

to a wider audience, increasing awareness and encouraging more people to participate  
 

 To raise the profile of Brinnington as an area where there is a vibrant and creative arts and crafts community 
and promote the range of quality arts experiences available there  

 
 To celebrate the talent in Brinnington, improving people�s self confidence and bringing communities together  

 
 
The strength of participation in the festival reflected the efforts that went into publicising the events by all partners. The 
groups involved, Arc, the Neighbourhood Management Team and Lets Go Global all used a range of media to reach 
as many people as possible.  

 
In all, 21 community groups participated in the festival, an increase of 7 groups over 2013 and a total of 28 exhibitions, 
workshops and performances were held, an increase of 5. 725  people participated (as compared with 585 last year), 
with a further 655 in the audience. 256 of those involved were young people below the age of 24, an increase of 36. 
 
21 artists were employed, and 65 volunteers involved for a total of 1385 hours. The wage replacement value of the 
hours that these volunteers worked was £17,285.   
 
Arc was instrumental in making this happen.  
 
A significant number of the groups and individuals participating had long-term health problems or disabilities and 
the festival was a chance to celebrate their creativity and achievements. It was also important in improving self-
confidence.  
 
It offered the chance to learn what others in the community were doing, to be creative, to try out different things, 
celebrate local talent and be part of an inspired and enthusiastic community. It made an important social impact in 
terms of raising the profile of Brinnington in a positive way and encouraging community inclusion by bringing 
groups together.  

 
In summary, in delivering the festival a strong partnership has been forged between Arc, the local community, the 
artists, Neighbourhood management and Lets Go Global. This will help to build the confidence and capacity to move 
forward with further collaborative projects in the future. 

 
Financial review 

 
Overview 
Reserves policy 
The reserves policy is to endeavour to keep unrestricted reserves at a minimum level of £50,000, equivalent to three 

months� total expenditure. The Board believes that on-going statutory income from the Main Grants Scheme, which is 
awarded for three year periods, will not be stopped without at least three months notice. The association holds no 
funds that can be invested for any long period of time. The reserves are needed to cover cash flow fluctuations. Four 
weeks worth of expenditure is retained in the current account and any assets above that are held in three interest 
earning accounts. 
 
Principal funding sources  
Principle sources of funding for 13/14 included NHS Stockport (£59590); SMBC Main Grants Scheme for Adults 
(£12000); SMBC Main Grants Scheme for Children (£8000); Children in Need (£9880) the Big Lottery Reaching 
Communities (£35,310);  the Lloyds TSB Foundation (£12500); the People�s Health Trust and the Equity Foundation 
(£3784). 

  
How expenditure has supported key objectives  
Core funding from NHS Stockport (formerly Stockport Primary Care Trust) has been essential in providing the 
bedrock to support other funding bids, and to give confidence to other potential funding bodies that Arc is a viable  
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Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
 
concern and a �safe bet� for further investment. 

 
Funding from Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council has further strengthened core funding, and additionally helped 
to develop Young People�s Arc. 
 
Funding from Reaching Communities covered salary and programme costs, and was significant in enabling Arc to 
develop its studio and community programmes. 
 
Funding from Children in Need enabled us to consolidate Young People�s Arc. 
 
Lloyds TSB contributed to core cost salaries. 
 
The Equity Foundation supported Arts for Living, Arc�s programme for older people. Awards for All will be supporting 
this programme in 2014/15. 
 
The People's Health Trust contributed to our community programme by supporting Brinnington Arts Festival. 

 
 
Plans for future periods  
 

In 14/15 Arc will focus on building effective and sustainable partnerships with a broad range of agencies.  
 

Critical to this will be our relationships with statutory partners � SMBC, NHS Stockport CCG, and Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust as well as the voluntary sector. Accordingly we will: 
 
o Continue to deliver high quality projects which address the needs of the most vulnerable people 
o Develop a whole population approach to arts & health, culture and community 
o Make progressive inroads into developments in priority neighbourhoods and the town centre. 
 
Arc has submitted a proposal for occupation of a building in the marketplace which would become a new gallery and 
arts facility. The proposal has been well received and a decision is expected in the summer of 2014.  
 
Meanwhile, Arc will continue to develop festivals, and will also explore other opportunities to develop the cultural life of 
Stockport. These may include:  
o The third Brinnington Arts Festival 
o O�Fest, an arts festival in Offerton 
o A writer in residence 
o A textile artist in residence  
 
In 14/15 the main components of the studio programme for adults will be as follows: 
o Pathways to Recovery � skills-based activities  
o Arts for Life � therapeutic activities 
o Work experience/Social Enterprise 
o Archives self-led group 
o Hart self-led group 
o Arclight � confidence building and prevention of relapse 
o Challenge model � helping vulnerable adults develop career opportunities to meet their aspirations  

 
Young People�s Arc will continue to be based on partnerships with: 
o Mosaic 
o Signpost Young Carers 
o The Pendelbury Centre 
o Ebony & Ivory 
 

Team development 

Many of these projects will also provide key opportunities to develop our human resources through the recruitment, training 
and mentoring of volunteers in roles in the studio, in the office and in promotional events and exhibitions.  During 14/15 this 
will be systematized, and opportunities for supported work experience for potential new arts workers in particular will be 
built in to the planning and resourcing of future projects. 
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Statement of Directors� responsibilities 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities 
(effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities). Under 
company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the income and expenditure of the charitable company for that 
period.  In preparing these financial statements the Directors are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charitable company will continue in business. 
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
charitable company�s transactions and disclose at any time the financial position of the charitable company and to enable it 

to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.  They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the charitable company and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities. 
 
The Directors, who are directors for the purposes of company law, and trustees for the purposes of charity law, who served 
during the year and up to the date of this report are set out on page 1. 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities (issued in March 2005) and in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the small 
companies� regime of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Approved by the Directors and signed on its behalf by: 
                                              
  

 
Linda Beckwith (Company Secretary) 
 

 
25 September 2014 
.....................................  Date 
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Independent Examiner�s Report to the Trustees of 
 

 Arts for Recovery in the Community 
 

I report on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March 2014 which are set out on pages 11 to 20. 
 
Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner 
 
The trustees (who are also the directors of the company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the 
preparation of the accounts. The trustees consider that an audit is not required for this year under section 43(2) of the 
Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act) and that an independent examination is needed. 
 
Having satisfied myself that the charity is not subject to audit under company law and is eligible for independent 
examination, it is my responsibility to: 
 
 examine the accounts under section 145 of the 2011 Act; 
 
 to follow the procedure laid down in the general Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 145 (5)(b) 

of the 2011 Act; and 
 
 to state whether particular matters have come to my attention. 
 
 
Basis of independent examiner�s report 
 
My examination was carried out in accordance with general Directions given by the Charity Commission.  An examination 
includes a review of the accounting records kept by the charity and a comparison of the accounts presented with those 
records.  It also includes consideration of any unusual items or disclosures in the accounts, and seeking explanations from 
you as trustees concerning any such matters.  The procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that would be 
required in an audit, and consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts present a �true and fair view� and the 

report is limited to those matters set out in the statement below. 
 
Independent examiner�s statement 
 
In the course of my examination, no matter has come to my attention: 
 

 which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect the requirements: 
 

 to keep  accounting records in accordance with section 386 of the Companies Act 2006; and 
 
 to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records, comply with the accounting requirements of 

section 396 of the Companies Act 2006 and with the methods and principles of the Statement of 
Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by Charities have not been met;  or 

 
 to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the accounts 

to be reached.  

     
 

Paul Cowham ACA DChA 
Green Fish Resource Centre 

46 � 50 Oldham Street 
Manchester 

M4 1LE 
 

Date 
7 October 2014 



Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds 2014 2013

Note £ £ £ £

Incoming resources 2

Donations 917     -    917 4
Grants 69,950 91,413 161,363 138,579
Fees and other income 41,638     -    41,638 55,280
Bank interest 721     -    721 1,086

Total incoming resources 113,226 91,413 204,639 194,949

Resources expended 3

Charitable activities 115,699 88,657 204,356 193,117
Governance costs 1,300     -    1,300 1,250

Total resources expended 116,999 88,657 205,656 194,367

Net incoming/(outgoing)
resources for the year 5 (3,773) 2,756 (1,017) 582

Transfer between funds 236 (236)     -        -    

Net movement in funds (3,537) 2,520 (1,017) 582

Funds at 31 March 2013 119,588 21,148 140,736 140,154

Funds at 31 March 2014 £ 116,051 £ 23,668 £ 139,719 £ 140,736

All of the charity's operations are classed as continuing. 

Movements on reserves and all recognised surpluses or deficits are shown above.

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Statement of Financial Activities

for the year ended 31 March 2014
(including Income and Expenditure account)
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Note

£ £ £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 8 14,160 16,982

Current assets
Debtors 9 15,577 29,018
Cash at bank and in hand 121,491 100,985

137,068 130,003
Creditors: amounts falling 

due in less than one year 10 (11,509) (6,249)

Net current assets 125,559 123,754

Total assets less current liabilities £ 139,719 £ 140,736

Reserves

Unrestricted funds 116,051 119,588

Restricted funds 11 23,668 21,148

£ 139,719 £ 140,736

�

�

Approved by the Directors and signed on their behalf by:

Julia McBryde (director)

Linda Beckwith (director)

25 September 2014 Date

Arts for Recovery in the Community

2013

For the year in question, the company was entitled to exemption from an audit under section 477 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to
small companies.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the small companies' regime (of
the Companies Act 2006).

Directors' responsibilities:

The members have not required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in accordance with section
476,

Company no. 5288784

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to accounting records and
the preparation of accounts

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2014

2014
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1 Accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

b Fund accounting

�

�

c

�

�

�

�

�

d

Donated services and facilities are included at the value to the charity where this can be quantified. The 
value of services provided by volunteers has not been included in these accounts.

Investment income is included when receivable.

Incoming resources

All incoming resources are included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the charity is entitled to the
income and the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy. The following specific policies are
applied to particular categories of income:

Voluntary income is received by way of grants, donations and gifts and is included in full in the Statement 
of Financial Activities when receivable. Grants, where entitlement is not conditional on the delivery of a 
specific performance by the charity, are recognised when the charity becomes unconditionally entitled to 
the grant.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. They
have been applied consistently during the year, and in the preceding year.

Restricted funds are subjected to restrictions on their expenditure imposed by the donor or through the 
terms of an appeal.

Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance of the general 
objectives of the charity.

Incoming resources from charitable trading activity are accounted for when earned.

Incoming resources from grants, where related to performance and specific deliverables, are accounted 
for as the charity earns the right to consideration by its performance.

Expenditure is recognised on an accrual basis when a liability is incurred. Expenditure includes any VAT
which cannot be fully recovered, and is included as part of the expenditure to which it relates.

Resources expended

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention and in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting and Reporting by Charities
(issued in March 2005) and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2014
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

e

f

Asset Category Annual rate

Improvements to premises 10%

Office furniture & equipment 25%

g Pensions

h Cash flow statement

Rentals payable under operating leases, where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remains
with the lessor, are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which they fall due.

Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Individual items costing less than £500 are
not capitalised.

 There were contributions outstanding / (prepaid) at the balance sheet date of £nil (2013: £nil).

Operating leases

The charitable company contributes to defined contribution pension schemes on behalf of its employees.
The assets of these schemes are entirely separate to those of the charity. The pension cost shown
represents contributions payable by the charity on behalf of the employees.

The charity has taken advantage of the exemption in Financial Reporting Standard 1 from preparing a Cash
Flow Statement on the grounds that it is a small charitable company.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

for the year ended 31 March 2014
Notes to the accounts

Arts for Recovery in the Community
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2 Incoming resources
Unrestricted Restricted Total 2014 Total 2013

£ £ £ £

Grants
NHS Stockport CCG 59,950     -    59,950 65,491
Public Health     -    4,000
Awards for All     -    5,890 5,890     -    
Lloyds TSB Foundation     -    12,500 12,500     -    
SMBC (MGS adults)     -    12,000 12,000 12,000
SMBC (MGS children)     -    8,000 8,000 8,000
People's Health Trust     -    7,833 7,833     -    
Big Lottery Fund Grant     -    35,310 35,310 35,424
BBC Children in Need     -    9,880 9,880 9,880
Stockport Homes/SMBC 10,000     -    10,000     -    
Equity Foundation     -        -        -    3,784

69,950 91,413 161,363 138,579

Donations 917     -    917 4

Fees and other income
Student placements 21,840     -    21,840 25,920
Commissions and sales 18,844     -    18,844 28,174
Other income 954     -    954 1,186

41,638     -    41,638 55,280

Interest received 721     -    721 1,086

Total incoming resources £ 113,226 £ 91,413 £ 204,639 £ 194,949

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)
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3 Resources expended
Unrestricted Restricted Total 2014 Total 2013

£ £ £ £

Charitable activities
Capital costs 4,265     -    4,265 6,303
Programme costs 33,966 40,589 74,555 63,887
Running costs 41,005 4,688 45,693 44,832
Staff costs 36,463 43,380 79,843 78,095

115,699 88,657 204,356 193,117

Governance costs 1,300     -    1,300 1,250

Total resources expended £ 116,999 £ 88,657 £ 205,656 £ 194,367

4 Corporation tax

5 Net incoming/(outgoing) resources

This is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:
2014 2013

£ £

Independent Examiner's remuneration 1,900 1,250
Depreciation 3,842 4,560

Independent Examiner's remuneration comprised:
Independent examination 500 450
Accountancy 800 800
Bookeeping and assistance with grant returns 600     -    

£ 1,900 £ 1,250

The charity is exempt from tax on income and gains falling within S505 of the Income & Corporation Taxes Act
1988 (ICTA 1998) or S256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 to the extent that these are applied to
its charitable objects. No tax charges have arisen in the charity.

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)
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6 Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:
2014 2013

£ £

Wages and salaries 71,532 69,654
Social security costs 6,713 6,508
Pension contributions 1,598 1,933

£ 79,843 £ 78,095

Chief executive 1.0 1.0
Artistic director 0.7 0.7
Administrator 0.6 0.6

Total 2.3 2.3

7 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

The number of employees earning over £60,000 per annum excluding pension contributions was nil (2013: nil).

No trustee or other person related to the charity had any personal interest in any contract or transaction entered
into by the charity, including guarantees, during the year (31 March 2013: nil).

The trustees received no remuneration or reimbursed expenses during the year (2013: Nil). Catriona McBride 
(the daughter of Julia McBride, a trustee of the charity) received £nil for running photography sessions during 

the year (2013:£595)

The average number of employees during the year calculated on the basis of full-time equivalents was as 

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)
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8 Fixed assets: tangible assets
Office

Improvements equipment
to premises & furniture Total

£  £  £  

Cost
At 1 April 2013 35,935 23,136 59,071
Additions 1,020     -    1,020

At 31 March 2014 £ 36,955 £ 23,136 £ 60,091

Depreciation
At 1 April 2013 19,099 22,990 42,089
Charge for the year 3,696 146 3,842

At 31 March 2014 £ 22,795 £ 23,136 £ 45,931

Net book value
At 31 March 2014 £ 14,160 £     -    £ 14,160

At 31 March 2013 £ 16,836 £ 146 £ 16,982

9 Debtors 2014 2013
£ £

Prepayments     -    2,495
Accrued income 15,577 26,523

£ 15,577 £ 29,018

10 Creditors: amounts falling due in less than one year
2014 2013

£ £

Accruals 11,509 6,249

£ 11,509 £ 6,249

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)
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11 Restricted funds
As at 1 April 

2013
Incoming 
resources

Outgoing 
resources Transfers

As at 31 
March 2014

£ £ £ £ £

Awards for All     -    5,890     -        -    5,890
BBC Children in Need     -    9,880 (9,880)     -        -    
Equity Foundation 3,784     -    (3,784)     -        -    
Lloyds TSB Foundation 15 12,500 (12,500) (15)     -    
Lankelly Chase Foundation (1,045)     -        -    1,045     -    
NLDC Capital 1,636     -        -        -    1,636
SMBC MGS (Adults)     -    12,000 (11,891) (109)     -    
SMBC MGS (children)     -    8,000 (8,000)     -        -    
SMBC Capital 10,684     -        -        -    10,684
People's Health Trust     -    7,833 (3,650)     -    4,183

1,283 35,310 (38,832) 2,239     -    

2,986     -        -    (2,239) 747
Evan Cornish 528     -        -        -    528
PEARL 1,277     -    (120) (1,157)     -    

£ 21,148 £ 91,413 £ (88,657) £ (236) £ 23,668

Restricted funds represent monies to be used for the following specific purposes:
Awards for all � funding towards Arts for Living in 2014/15.

Equity Foundation � grant towards Arts for Living in 2013/14.

Lloyds TSB Foundation - funding towards the salary of the Artistic Director.

NLDC Capital � towards upgrading equipment

SMBC Capital � for capital expenditure

Evan Cornish � to run a children's and young people's project

for the year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)

Big Lottery -Reaching 
Communities

Big Lottery - Capacity Building

BBC Children in Need � towards the Artistic Director's salary and NI costs in order to  support Young 

People's Arc. 

Lankelly Chase Foundation � towards the cost of running a series of arts workshops at Stepping Hill 

Hospital. The deficit was covered by Pennine Care NHS Trust who funded the same project for a further 

People's Health Trust - contributed to our community programme by supporting the Brinnington Arts 
Festival.
Big Lottery � funding from the Reaching Communities Scheme covered salary and programmes costs, and 

was significant in enabling Arc to develop its studio and community programmes.

PEARL � a partnership project between Arc, Public Health and the Children's Centres, working with mothers 

suffering from post natal depression. This was earned income and has therefore been transferred to 

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts
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12 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 March 2014 are represented by: Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds Total

£ £ £

Fixed assets 14,160     -    14,160
Net current assets 101,891 23,668 125,559

Total net assets £ 116,051 £ 23,668 £ 139,719

13 Lease commitments

The charity had the following annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases:

2014 2013 2014 2013
£  £  £  £  

Leases expiring in:
One year     -        -        -        -    
Two to five years     -        -    816 816

Arts for Recovery in the Community

Notes to the accounts

Land and buildings Equipment

for the year ended 31 March 2014 (continued)
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